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Editorial

We welcome from the lst April, our new Honorary Prcosident,
Dr Brian Hope-Taylor, who has graciously accepted the task of heading
our Socicty.

We look forward with new enthusiasm to the coming season and,if
the last winter session of lectures is any measurc to go by, the
standard and broadth of technical deliboration has set a new level of
achievemant.

Yot once again support is solicited from rank and file members, not
only for active support at digs, but for constructive criticism and
suggostions in the areas of our Socicty's sctivities which still leave
mach room for developmont.

Members are reminded of the forthecoming Annual General Meeting and
a full attendance would be approciated. Thie singular occasion in
the year goes a long wey to set the trend for activity for a further
twelve months and only by members expressing their wishes by word or
vote can our Society be steered in the desired direction.

Nominations for the coming years Committec are requested, if poss-
ible being sent to the Secretary before the A.G.M. in order to enablae
prior ballot organisation which will save time ot the meeting.

The Annual General Meeting. is to be held in the Library Lecture
Room, Letchworth, commencing at 8 O'clock on Friday 26th April 1968,

The Annual Dinner, which will immediately follow the A.G.M. on the
26th April will be held in the Letchworth Cinema Restaurant with
Mr Sofiancs and his staff serving our gastronomic needs. The cost
of the dinner will be £1. par head and for those wishing to attond,
would you please let the Secretary know by Friday the 19th Aprilj
sending him the necessary funds with your request.

o0o
Equipment Fund - New Year Draw.

Thanks for the gratifying support given by all concerned to the
1968 Now Yoar Draw in =id of the Equipment Fund, a total of £30-19-8d
(net £23-1-6d) was raised.
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Tho draw took place on the 2nd of January after the lecture of that
evening ani our guest speaker, Mr W.H. Manning of the Ibpartmont of
Archasology, Cardiff University drow the lucky winners.

Due to a magnificent response by local firms who donated all the
prizes the winners must have been given some pleasurc for their well
spant sixpence.

Our most grateful acknowledgoment is made to tho following in being
so gonoerous in donating prizess- Mozssrs T Brooker & Scons of Hitchin,
Mesers Hands-England Ltd., Messrs Irving Air Chute of G.B. Ltd.,

Massrs G.C. Polmer of the Wynd, Letchworth, Messrs Spirella Co. of G.B.
Ltd., Messrs R, Westly & Co. Ltd. of Luton.

Prize winnors for the N.H.A.S. 1968 Now Year Draw were:- 1lst prize

(Set of Car Scet Bolts) Miss A.E.Hall of 26, Eldefield, Lotchworth,

2nd prize (Sct of Excavation Tools) ¥rs I.F.CG. Wood of 34, Taywood
Close, Stovenage. 3rd. prize (Box Set of Parfumz) Mrs A. Cockburn of
Wheelors Plat, Fore Street, Weston, 4th prize (Box Set of Perfume)

Mirs K. Weloh of 161 Sish Lane, Stevenage. 5th prize (Bottle of Whisky)
Mrs K. Srith of 74 Baldock Road, Letchworth, 6th prize (Chicken)

Mrs O. C:atledine of 3, Clothall Road, Baldock. Tth prize (£2 Sterling)
Mr Lea of 111 Jackmana Place, Lotchworth. 8th prize (Lndies Shower
Hat% ¥r 1. Wool of 34 Taywood Close, Stovenage. 9th prize (Ladies Shower
Hat) Mrs Austir of 5, Donton Road Stevennge =nd the Booby Prizo (for
the first ticket out of the tubd for a member of the audience, a Jar of
Chicken) Mr A. Cockburn of Westone

o0o

Tt was reported recently that the Soviets would be publishing a
book sbhout o second Atlantis - Arctis - which the polar oxplorer
Yekov Gakkel (1900 - 65) believed to be a lost land now sunk beneath
tha A\rctic waters, Soviet Scientists who agree with Gakkel say that
the oceen floor and the naturc of the rocks on its slopes support
this view, and point out that the submerged Lomonceov Range lies
along a voleanic ond carthquake band, Ornithologists also point out
that somo migratory bird routes in the Arctic scom irrationally long,
but would secm logical if in the past thoy passed overland or along
coasts.— Could this land be the legend=ry Hyperborea 7

olo
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AN TMPORTANT NEW FIND AT BALDOCK.
By John Moss-Eccardt,

1968 had a most auspicious beginning for archacology in North
Herts, Sometime before Christmas, work had begun on a new building
site at tha Tone, Baldock, a2 site where some inhumation burials had
boen discovered in 1947 during the construction of "aluminium bunga-
lows" or "profabs". While romoving the topseil for a road, an excav-
ator driver uncovered a find of unprecented richness for this area,

In the scil appenred what seemed to be 2 piece of old iron bedstead
and pieces of brass; fortunately the men concerned noticed the un-
usual shape of the objects and collected the pleces, Some did, in
fact, get thrown on the lorry but a substantial part was assembled

and taken to an amateur ~rchacologist in thoe site foreman's home town.
Mr Les Matthews, Director of Excavations of the Manshead Society,
Tunstable, was able to asscmble the majority of the finds and contaect-
od the writer. Mr Matthews recognised tho find as of great import-
ence and was anxiocus that the objects should be rcturned to the right-
ful owncrs, Baldock Urbsn District Council. The writer visited the
gite where more fragments were to be seen and the whole collection was
taken to the Baldock Council Officas,

It was quite obvious that steps should be taken to recover what-
evaor remained, and that a proper record should be made, The writer
contacted Dr I.M. Stead, an suthority on Belgie burials and onc of the
Ministry of Works's specialists in excavation, In the space of one
afternoon Dr Stesd arranged an oxcavation and alerted his team of
experienced "diggers" who were able to arrive in Baldock to begin work
on January 2nd. Arrangements were made with the authorities concern—
ed and considerable co-oporation was roceived from Messrs Shanley of
Luton, the site contractors. Certain reasonable restrictions wore
imposed as to which areas were available for exploration.

The mein priority was the completion of the clearance of the hole
in which the objects had boen found., The ground was extremely muddy
and the woather snowy, and it was naccssary to erect a polythene shel-
tor over the site so that the eareful scraping could begine. At the
sama time, footings were already being dug by the contractors at the
Pinnocks Lane end of the Tene and = toam was sct to work there to re-
gover the inhumations that lay in the trenches. Meanwhile others



were soorching the spoil heaps for parts of an iron firedog which was
missing, and wcre succossful.

The finde up tc this point wore: two iron firedogs of fine artistic
execcutior, fragments of a large bronze cesuldron of sheet bronze and
its iron ring tandles, two bronze dishes, frogments of bronze strips
in docorated Cecltic style which had been pert of ~ wooden bucket,

the handlos belonging to this, two tcrminal hcads which decorated
them, and an arphora or wine jar. This assemblage was typical of a
Belgic "Chicftein's Burial"™ and Dr Stcnd hoped to discover the crema-
tod bonos of tle decessed, as well as any other similer burizl, for
these are seldcm found singly.

The pain oxcavation was, therefore, concentrated in the area of
the first disecvery., The bottom of the hole was roached and this
yiclded further bronze fragments and another heed from the bucket.
Another hole nearby locked as if it might contain somc associated
finds but its contents of lamps and pottory were dnted to the third
cantury A.D. by n Roman coin ~t the bottom, Othor finds were made
noarby bu$ ne c¢ther Belgic material emerged.

The inwumation cemetery on the other arca yielded twonty five
burials £ pottery of the Belgic and Roman poriods. There were
alsc several ditches which ran off tho site and dissppenred into arcas
which wore not availsble for excavation. OSome of these matched the
discoveries mafe earlier during the construction of buildings in the
High Stroot.

Tho majority of Dr Stoad's toam of diggers wana forced fo leave
the site in order to return to their colleges =nd universities at
the and of two weoks. A watch on the site was kept by Mr Tony
Pacitto, Dr Stead's deputy; the two have worked together for twelve
yeara! Mr Pacitto is an expert on clectrical and mechanical aids to
axcavation and the excavation was supplied with floodlamps driven
by a gonerator to make night work poseible. Various dotection de-
vices wore also used for the location of buried pipes and other im
pedimenta of g building site. DTuring the "watching" period traces
of a Roran building were discovered and two walls werec found running
at right angles to each other. The corner was roinforced with tiles
and the structure itself was mad: of chalk blocks or "clunch". The
interior produced = great deal of pottery dating from the first cen-
tury A.l., and later, The continuation of the walls, in both di-
rections couldn't be followed becausec of the modern road, In one
saction the well had been built over an earlier pit and was therefore

4.



provided with found~tions os over four fect deep. Tha general ap-
pearance of the building suggests its use ns a dwelling house ~nd it
is tho first example of a properly recorded Roman building in Baldock.

The finda have been sont to the Ministry of Public Buildings and
Works to be studied ~nd prepared for publicotion: the metalwork will
be treated in the Ministry's Laboratory. It is hoped that it will
be exhibitod at Baldock and then, finally, go to a local museun on
permanent loan.

The lesson to be learmt from this cxecavation is the noed for
ewift reaction when =~ discovery is merdo, =nd whon such a dig is moun-
ted it should bc backed by the most modorn and pleomtiful facilitlies
of equipment and conservation orgsnisation. Some may fecl that this
loaves little room for the amateur but, on the contrary, thero is a
grant need for trained amatours always, and it must be remembeored
that all Dr Stead's helpers, with the exception of two, were simply
amateurs who were being paid for their expoerience and efficiency.

The distributicn of burials of this type is, up till now, limited
to Herts, Beds, Cambs and Esscx, The significnnce of these is dis-
cussed by Dr Stead in the current number of Archasologia. It is
hopoed that a copy will be availsble for those interested, in due
COUrse.

alo

Pity its not on our "Patch".

It is learned that no-one wents to tzke the rosponsibility for the
skeletons of two Romans which were exposed when part of a river bank
at Alcester, Wnrwickshire, collapsed some months ago.  Archasologisis
it is said, have shown no interest and local authorities and police
say the 2,000 - year - old skoletons are "not their problem',

olo

A British team of archasoclogists have discovered a large archive of
inscribed Assyrian tabloets of about 1500 B.C., which promises to
throw new light on a fascinating period of history. Some 300 tab-
lets were found in the romains of a great pelace with 8-ft. thick
walls., They include administrative records, name of palace offi-
cimls and appeals to the king Zimri-lin for troops.
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THE EARLI?3T JERUSALEM,

It is t20 fate of Jerusalom thnt it hes beon a city of importance
to so many different pooplos and roligions. There is probably no
othor city in tle world that has been ruled by so many different races
and for meay of them it has a standing and fame that far cxceeds that
of wealth, size or physical attractions,

For the past six years, the British School of Lrchacology in
Jorusalom, in ccllaboration with the Ecole Bibliquc de St.Etienne
and tha Royal Ortaric Muscum, and supported by many intercsted insti-
tutions, especislly the British Leadeomy, the Russell Trust and the
Naticnal Goograrhi, Society, hess been carrying out oxcavations on the
sitec, with the ¢im of unraveclling thce tangledskein of its structural
history from the mich-destroyed remnins of its dcfonces and houses.

The exesvaticns have now reached the stoge when the history of
Jorusalem can be sot out with some accuracy. The prescnt political

situation ~ives these results peculiar relevsnca.

The 01¢ City of Jerusalom today bridges the n.orthern end of two
steep ridges which run cut from the main mountainous erest of
Pealestines The ridges nre defined to the gast by the Kedron Valley
and to the west and south by the Hinnonm Valley, which curves round to
join the Kedron. Botwoon the two is the Tyropocon, now much silted
up separating the two ridges,

The most important result of the excavations has been to show that
the original city of Jerusalem was situated centircly on the southern
ond of the eastorn ridge. It has been possible to locato the earli-
eet town wall, well down the eastern slope, where it was placed to
guard =access to the spring in the valleyjy it waa the existence of this
spring th~t dictated the position of Jerusalem, for a perennial source
of wat or was the absolute essontial for all anciont citics in

Palost inc.

It was found possible to date the wall to cireca 1800 B.C.; there
wns some cocupation on the site about 2600 B.C., but thore is so far
no evilence of a walled town.

This town of 1800 B.C. was the Jeorusalom whose ruler, Abdi Kheba,
6



w28 in correspondence with Akhenaten of Bgypt C. 1370 B.C. and of the
Jebusites whose successful resistence to the first inoursions of the
Ieraclites is recorded in tho bock of Joshua,

~y 2 8ite for a town, the steep slopos and narrow crest were not
very imviting. Access to the spring can have been the only reason
why the walls were carried so far down the slops, for the angle of the
rock is about 30 deg.

The early houses on the slope were irregular and unimpressive.
But in the 13th century B.C. the Jebusites carried out 2 major town-
planning operation which was to alter the aspoet of Jorusalem for the
next 700 years. On the slope they constructed = serics of massive
stonefilled terraces to sorve as the basie of much more commodious
houses, The ferraces were vulnerable to natural disasters, such as
carthquakes, and to human attacks, but they were so vital to the
structure of a large part of the city that they were roprired again
and again.

This Jebusite Jorusalcm held out against the Israclites until
Ciroa 1000 B.C. but it was vital to David in his aim of uniting nll
the tribes of Israel under his rule that he should capture it, for it
controlled the main north-scuth road of the hill country. The Jobu—
sites were so confident in the strength of their defences that thay
Jeerad at the Israclites and declared that the city could ho defended
by the blind =nd the lame., It fell because z detachment of the
attackers was able to penetrate within the walls by climbing up tho
rock-cut shaft and tunnel leading to the spring in the vallaoy.

The evidence is clear that the city of David was this same Jebu-
site city. The east and west w-1lls romained in use down to the
8th century B.C. and the north wzll, some 220 yards south od the
present 0ld City, continued in use throughout the reigm of David,

The whole of the original Jerusalem was thereforo well outside the
01d City. David's repairs of the Jebusite walls are recorded in the
Bible, and it is also rocorded that he (and seoveral successors)
repaired Millo, This is 2 word meaning filling, and we can now
interpret it with much probability as the torraces on which an
appreciable part of thc town was built.

Solomen's addition to Jerusalem Circa 960 B.C. wzs the Temple,.

Its site is that of the present Moslem sanctuary of the Haramesh-
[



Sherif, tut Solomon's Temple has disappeared completely beneath the
great platform of Herod's Temple, which supports the Haram. Nothing
has survived, either, of Solomon's city for it has been found that

in Roman times ths wholo area was used as a quarry. What is, however,
clear is that his city was still econfined to the eastern ridge, for
@Xcavations on the western ridge have shown that this area was not
opocupied until much later.

Jarusalem rotained the boundaries of Solomon's city with one
slight addition, down to tho time of the Babylonian destruction in
586 B.C. In thc eighth century thc castorn wall was rebuilt and
several times ropaired, One of thesc builds was propably the work
of Hozekiah, circa 700 B.C. faced with the threat of the advance of
the Assyrians, vho in 722 B.C. had captured Samaria and carried away
the northorn tribes of Israsl into captivity Hezekiah's most fam-
ous measure in face of this threat was to carry the water from the
spring in the velley by the rockeut Siloam Punnel right thromgh the
ridgo to the pocl of Siloam in the central valley, which can now be
shown to kave been a rock-out cistern.

The city and the Kingdm of Judah survived procariously for an-
other 100 years. Excavation has shown that tho Babylonian destruc-
tion was ¢von more disastrous than the Biblical account would suggest.
The vital terrace structures on the castern slope collapsed in a vast
tumblo of stones,

Tha first returning exiles in 530 B.C. wore concerned only with
rebuilding the Temple, =and when the walls wore at last robuilt by
Nehemiah in 440 B.C. the wreckage of the castern slope was left out-
side and the walls followed the crest of the ridge.

Excavation hps shown that it was not till the time of the Macca-
bees in the 2nd century B.C. that Jerusalem bagan to grow again.
New terraces were built, this time out in the contral valley, and it
was probably Circa.142 B.C. that the northorn end of the westernm
ridge was included in the city, though tho southern end still romained
outside it.

This was the Jerusalem that Herod the Groat, at the end of the
let contury B.C., beautified with many fine buildings ineluding his
groat rebuilding of the Tomple, And Hered's Jerusalem was the Jeru—
salem of th> time of the Gospels, One of the most interesting results

of the oxcrvations was to be able to establish the approximate
8



linc of the north wall of Herod's city and to show that the Church of
the Holy Sopulchre lies outside it, and may thercfore be on the auth-
entic site of Calwary,

The greatest extonsion of Jorusalem ecame in the time of Horod
Agrippa, A.D. 40-44., It has now been able to show that the wall en-
closing the south end of tho western ridge belongs to his time,

Dr. J.B. Hennessy, Director of the British School, working on behalf
of the Jordanian Department of Antiquities, has shown that the con—
temporary north wall lies beneath the north wall of the 0ld City.

Herod Agrippa's Jerusalem had a short life, for it was utterly
destroyed by the Romans in A.D. 7O when the exile and Diaspora of the
Jews began. The ravages of this destruction were everywhore evid-
ent in the excavations. 1In A.D. 135 the obliteration of ancicnt
Jerusalem was comploted when Hadrian built Aelia Capitolina on the
ruins. Chronological investigation of Jerusalem culminated in 1966
in establishing that thc walls of Aelia are the basis of those of the
014 Ci t;‘;"r

For another 500 years, tho city was Romen and Byzantinc., When
Christianity bocame the official roligion of the Empire, thore was =
period of considerable prosperity and expansion, but after the Arab
capturc of tho eity from the Byzantines it shrank back into the area
of Aslia., From then on it has boen Moslem, with a brief century of
Crusader rule in the 12th century A.D. The Turks captured it in
1517, and the present walls of the 014 City are tho work of Suleiman
the Magnificent in the 16th century A.D.

Joerusalem has thus had a chequered history in situation and ownor—
ship: ocoupied by the Jebusites from 1800 to 1000 B.C. (and perhaps
eight hundred years earlier); occupiod by the Jews from 1000 B.C. to
A.D, 70, and ruled by them from 1000 B.C. to 586 B.C. and then by the
great empires of the Near East in turn; ruled by Rome from 4.D. T0j
Christian under Byzantine rule from A.D.330 to A.D. 6363 occupied by
Arabe from A.D. 636 to the present day, and ruled by one of the Arab
Powers from A.D. 636 to 1099, by Latin Christians from 1099 to 1187,
by Arabs again $i11 1517, by Turks from 1517 to 1918, under a British
Mandate till 1948, and ruled by Arabs till 1967. No other city has
kmown such = history. o0o

Archacologists at Sheffield University are hoping that oxcava—
tions which they will carry out this summer in northern Greece will
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provide frash evidence about the connection of Neolithic man in
South Furopc with the Near East and Cecntral Europe.

The archaecologists hope the cxecavations may tell them from which
of those places Neolithic man loarned the =rt of metalurgy. A joint
cxpedition from Shefficld and the University of California is to
start digging under the auspicce of the British School of Archacol-
ogy, Athons, 2t Photolivos, ncar Drama, in castern Macedonia at the
end of .Tul}"-

The ficld director, Dr Colin Renfrecw, of Shefficld University,
said yesterday that the site was a large mound about 100 yards long,
60 yards wido, ¢nd 10 yards decp which seemed from surface evidence
to datc from the late Neolithic period - between 4000 and 3000 B.C.
Ho s2id that the expedition, which will continue for three seasons,
would try to establish the sociology of the Heolithic willaga by
drawing up 2 conpleto plan of it, something which has not beon done
in Groece before.

In particular, he hoped to find evidencc to show whether the
Greeks ha¢ learred the art of smelting and moulding copper and
bronze frcn contact with tho Near East - tho gencerally accepted view
- or by ccntact with settloments in Bulgaria, = theory which he
favours.

o0o

The pecple who cccupied Britain nearly 4,000 years ago hzd a good
knowledgo of mathomatics and astronomy, according to Professor A.
Thom, Prof. Thor has just brought out = book on "Megalithic sites in
Britain", wherein he sets out evidence that Megalithic man could sot
out ellipses based on "Pythagorean" triangles a thousand yoars before
the earliest Greek mathematicians, A "yard" of 2.72 ft. was in con-
stant use throughout Britain, A calendar divided the year into 16
parts of 22 or 23 days., [Eclipses could be predicted with accuracy
and it is almost certain, Prof. Thom adds, that the stone-age people
could keep accurate time by observing first-magnitude stars.

oo

Archaeologists have been working on the site of a moated manor house
between Cookham and Maidenhead and have found a great deal of evi-
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donce indicating that the area was inhabited bofore the Norman Con-
quest, Tho manor was provicusly thought to date from the 11th cen-
tury and is the first mediaeoval structurc of its kind to be complet-
ely oxcavated in Berkshire., Discovories so for inelude coins, anim-
a2l, fish and bird bones, a bronze buckle, broken pottery, kmife blades
hundreds of oyster shells and a chalk figurinc,

o0o

Sciontists nre convinced that man was living on the Armeni-n plat-
eau at least 800,000 years ago, JArmenia is said to be an archaeo-
logist's paradise -nd hordly 2 yoar passes without something exeiting
coming to light., One of tho most astonishing rocoent finds, however,
was not the work of archaeologists but a couple of young Soviet geo-
logists, They spotted a pattorn of littlo "potholos"™ and trenches
that meant that iron ore had boen smolted and worked there. It took
some time to convince archaeclogists that what hnd been discovered
was a sort of blast furnace, 3,000 or 4,000 years olds Furthor ex-
cavations made it quite clear that the community who had lived thcre
hed reached an unexpectcdly high lovel of eulture. The "blast fur-
naces"™ were only the first of the finds =t Motsamor, near Erevan-

far more interesting things were found. Thorc was, for instance, a
vast temple hollowed out of a mountain side and the great alter 2t
its centre still bore traces of fires, as did seven pillars at the
haad of the alter. Experts zmame to the conclusion that the Metsa-
morians had quitc an extensive knowledge of astronomy, as there wore
ropresentations of the heavenly bodies =nd compass points, =nd a
small hill had apparently been usced as an observatory.

oDo—

A Russion working on excavations beside the Ili River, South
Kazakstan, noticed something unusual sbout =2 stone pulled out by one
of the bulldozers, He had it washed and found it was a 121b fossil-
ised tooth,.

Soientists later decided it had come from a Wust elephant, which
had lived about 400 million years ago.

oo
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Two South Devon potholers have uncovered a cave system which may
well have been closed since prehistoric times,

Tha discoverers, who were trying to lengthen a passage in the
Buckfastleigh csve system, uncovered a narrow gap which one of them
scrambled through.

Ths discovery led to the revealing of some 2,000 ft, of caves
and passagcS.

oOo

Local Society Programmes,

Tha Manshead Archacological Society of Dunstable.

A lecture on April 8th held at the "Winston Churchill", Church
Strect, Dunstable at 7-45 p.m. by R.Hollowell Esq. entitled
"Archasological finds from air surveys and ficld walks".

o0o

The results of the execavation at Cadbury hill fort in Somorset
in 1966 rcvealod many objects which can provide evidenco of habitation
by many differcrt poople, if not the evidenec of one porson in part-
ioular - kKing Arthur, Although a vast library including Mallory and
Tonnyson point to Cadbury almost traditionally as the site of Camslot,
a loss pootic but mora cbjoctive authority is John Leland, the 16th
century antiquary, who said the place was known to locals as Camelot
and "they soy King Arthur much resorted here".  Recovered treasures
showed the site had been inhabited from early Neolithic times onward.
The finds incluced flint axes, bronze objects and iron age pottery but
all 1ifp there sccmed to come to an abrupt ond around thoe time of the
Roman occupatior.

The archacological view of King Arthur scems to be that he was an
un-nemed Celtic chief of the post-Roman period who was intent on de-
fending Celtondem (or Christianity). Anthropolegists, however, be-
lieve Lrtlur to be more of an ideal, similar to the Jungian conception
particularly where reference to the Quest and the Grail is concerned.
Further exsevations at Cadbury would certainly prove fruitful, but at
loast £15,000 is required baefore pmothor dig commoncaos.
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Round and About:
Thetford Priory

Thetford is a somowhat guaint town on the A.11 Newmarket to
Norwich Rond. It has many clzaims to historieal fame, but certainly
the most impressive is the extonsive ruin of the Priory of OQur Lady
of Thetford,

Although mich neglected since the Disscolution poricd until
gomparatively rccently when taken over by the Ministry of Publie
Building and Works, somo of the walls and arches cven now rear
skyward to great height and give some impression of tha former
splendour of the building.

Founded some 50 yenrs after the Nerman invasion of Britain by an
0ld friocnd of William the Conguerer named Roger Bigod, tho building
of the church was begun in 1107. In 1114 the monks, who belonged to
tha order of Cluny, occupicd the church, and the othcr monastic
buildings were contimued during the rest of the twelfth contury.

During the thirtcenth century the Priory becamo 2 place of
pilgrimage for the sick and infirm, The monk John Brame, who died
in 1414, has left a rocord of the curiocus events that led up te tho
sstablishmont of the Priory as a healing shrine, An image of Our
Lady hay been erected ovor the high altnr of the Priory Church and
was mach worshipped by a certain craftsman of Thetford who was seak—
ing the return of his health from an incurable disease. One doy the
poor fellow rushed to the Prior and told him that Our Lady had ap-
peared to him in a dream on three separate occasions and requested
that he tell the Prior to set about building her 2 chapel on the north
side of the Priory. His story was apparently so convincing that the
Prior duly had a wooden chapel erected. The craftsman then roturned
and said that it was the wish of Our Lady that the Chapel should be of
stone. However nothing was done in this respect -nd somstime later
Our Lady appeared in a vision to a woman of Thetford and bid her to
instruct a cortain monk to urge the Prior to complete the building.
The woman ignored the dream but hor arm suddenly becama paralysed and
in a distressed state sho went to the monk who duly informed the Prior.
He in turn was once again impressed by the events -nd finally built
the stone Lady Chapel, the N.E. angle of which still stands to almost
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its original height. The cld imsge was cleaned and set up over the
alter. During the cleaning, the head was found to be hollow and con-
tained certain holy relics of saints. Those apparently conferred
healing powars on the image =nd the Priory soon became a place of pil-
grimaga for the eick. John Brame in faet rccords many miraculouns
CUrcs .

Tha Priory prospercd and the east end of the church wes elaborat-
aly rebuilt during the thirteenth century., Various other repairs
and altorstions wore carried out during the fourtecnth and fiftconth
centuries.

"hin the last Bigod died in 1306 the estates passed to the orown
and subscquently to the Mowbrays.  After the Mowbrays came the How-
ards znd the tomwbs of the first Howard Duke (famous for his victory
over tho Scots at Flodden in 1513) can be secn in the Priory.

At tho timo of my visit it was posdiblc to look down into the con-
cretoe covorad brick veult of the second Duko nnd see the brick piers

which supported tho coffin,

In 1536 = move was made for the suppros=ion of the Priory. The
third Jdowarl Duke made considerable efforts to s=vo the ocstablishment
and he even petitioned the King to cenvert it into a College of sccou-
lar Cancns.

Mas, tho pctition failed and on February 16th. 1540 the King's
commisaionors fiinally took ovor the Priory of Our Lady of Thetford.

oo

A palatial late first century Roman residence which hss boen excovat-
ed over the last soven years at Fishbourne, Sussex, is now balieved
to havoe boen the palace of the native "subject-king" Cogidubnus, who
was appointed "King and Legate of Augustus in Britain" in the first
contury A.D. and whose capital was Chichester (Novimagus).

In a2 roport to the Chichester Civic Society Exeavations Commit—
tee Profossor Berry Cunliffe, who conducted the more rccent excava-
tions » said:
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"oho owned such a palace we are unlikely ever to knmow for cortain
but the strongest claimant is surely the local king. Tiberius
Claudius Cogidubnus. As a king and a citizen of senatorial rank he
mist have owned a fine residonce: for anyonc else to have lived at
Fishbourne in such luxury, on the doorstep of his capital, would
have been unthinkable,"

Summing up the history of tho site, Professor Cunliffe anid that
below the palace were, first, structures which suggest a military
supply base and which might have been used during the conquest of the
West Country in A.D. 43 and lator some eivil developmant, followed by
a smell private house with a bath suite - possibly of $he period of
Nero. During the early Flavian period a considerable change took
place, explained Professor Cunliffe:

" A site of a quarter of a million square feet was propared andia
building was erected hore more closely comparzble in sizo and archi-
tectural grandeur to the palaces of Nero and Ibmitian than in any
other known building in North-west Eurcpe. Its form, intcrior
dacoration, and garden imply that a considerable tcam of continentals
skilled in arts herdly lmown in Britain were taking part in the
construction work, ™

alo

" Tale Pieca"

For those visitinz the west country during the coming holiday season
a stop-off at a particulsr Scmerset pub, cen be rowarding. The
hotel in question is "The Angel Hotel" in Frome and is situated half
overlooking the markot square =nd half in King Street.

The " /ngel" the oldest hotel in Frome, is recorded as boing
firat granted a liconce in 1312 but it is belleved that parts of the
building pre-date this by some considersble tims. In recent times
two interesting discoveries were mede in the "Angel" during struct-
ural alterations,

In 1959 Gas Board workmen broke through to an unknown upstairs
room that had been sealed off, presumably since Elizabethan times,
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Howaver r previcus landl-dy had suspeected the presence of such a
placa. Ia February 1966, floorboards were being romoved in the
public bar when a 10ft. deoep wall wes discovared right under vhere
present dey darts players customarily ployed their arrowa. & quaint
glass bottle, probably 16th century, wos also found intact at the
side of thi woll. The well mey once again be pe=-discovered as it
wes only covered by concrete and not filled in.

An old book, dated 1320, dealing in part with the history of
Frome montions 1he "Angel" with Honours, and the Foor Rate Book for
Frome drnted 168( tells that one, Edward Baylie of Chepe Strect, did
pey a yearly ratc of two poncc for a part of "Yo Angel". In 1686
the then landlord Jchn Accourts faced ~ ratc charge of onc shilling
and sixponce per yoar but after 5 petition apparontly ho was granted
a reduction as it is rocorded that hc paid but six pence por year in
1620, The some sixpenny rate was still peid by one, Porvica de 1la
Court, in 1734, of whom it is said was 2 descondant of John Accourts
but a chango of name was made in kooping with an enhanced looal
frmily reputation.

Ono melest ¢laim of "Ye Angel Hotel" is that no colibrity
such as Good Quecn Bess, Dick Turpin, Bloody Jeff or 01d Brown Bess
ovor visitsd or slept therc but this in no way detracts from the quel-
ity of the drinl, fare or bed thet can be had thors to this day,

- oDo

Good Hunting!
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Fortheoming Events.

| April 25th. Anmuol General Mecting and Dinner (dotails in
this issue of tho Antiquary).

Mzy 26th. Visit 4o Colchoster Museum and to the town
sites, ealling alsc at Coltishall where we will
have toa. Costs, £1 per hoad. Applications (with
romittnnos plesse) to thoe Secretary by 14th Hay.

The Society currently rcoccives a number of Archaeclogieal journals
and pericdicals., Members wishing to borrow copies should contact
the Sooretary.
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